

PlainSail Documents User Guide

| Contents |
|----------|
|----------|

| Overview of PlainSail Documents | 3 |
|--|----|
| Access via an Entity | 3 |
| Access via the Sidebar | 3 |
| Key things to remember | 5 |
| Viewing documents | 6 |
| Workspace panel | 7 |
| Documents panel | 8 |
| Details panel | 9 |
| Notes | 9 |
| Entities | 10 |
| Versions | 10 |
| Workspaces | 11 |
| Labels | 11 |
| Preview panel | 11 |
| Ribbon actions | 11 |
| Editing documents already saved in PlainSail | 12 |
| Checking out a document | 12 |
| Checking in a document | 12 |
| Saving new documents into PlainSail | 13 |
| From Windows Explorer | 13 |
| From your filing tray | 13 |
| Filing tray ribbon actions | 14 |
| Within a client from your filing tray | 14 |
| From Microsoft Outlook | 15 |
| Tagging documents with labels | 16 |
| Viewing Labels | 16 |
| Adding labels to documents | 16 |
| Removing Labels from documents | 17 |
| Creating Default Labels For New Entities | |
| Using Date Variables in Default Label Names | 19 |
| Varying Your Default Labels By Entity Type | 19 |

$\mathsf{PLAINSAIL}\,\mathbf{k}$

| Recovering deleted items21 |
|---|
| Q&A22 |
| How do I set default labels for new entities |
| How to attach a document to an email22 |
| How to copy a document22 |
| Quickest way to check in documents22 |
| How to search for a document across all clients22 |
| Document Templates |
| Overview |
| Managing document templates24 |
| Creating a new template25 |
| Markers |
| Using markers within a document |
| Using markers in a list or within a table26 |
| Launching a new document template27 |
| Converting a Word Document to PDF27 |

Overview of PlainSail Documents

In PlainSail, documents are stored within PlainSail itself and does not use the folder structure in native Windows. This approach has the following advantages.

- 1) A document can belong to multiple entities at the same time.
- 2) Documents cannot be independently edited, moved or deleted outside of the PlainSail environment.
- 3) Documents have version control.
- 4) Users may make notes against documents.
- 5) Documents may be circulated for signature/approval.
- 6) Access to documents can be strictly controlled.
- 7) Standard documentation may be easily created from templates with all variable data completed.
- 8) Documents are readily available from multiple points within PlainSail.

Instead of using folders, PlainSail assigns documents to Entities and it also requires that a document must belong to at least one Workspace. Once a document is saved in PlainSail, any number of other Entities and Workspaces may be assigned to it.

In addition, any document may be tagged with a label or labels in order to provide further categorisation to ease future retrieval.

When a document is stored in PlainSail, you should assign it with a meaningful and comprehensive name so that it can be easily retrieved and searched for.

You can access documentation either directly from within an entity you are working on, or via the 'Documents' option on the left side bar if you want more generalised access.

Access via an Entity

When you are working on a specific entity you can click on the '**Documents'** menu option at the top of the screen:



Please see <u>Viewing Documents</u> for an overview of this.

Access via the Sidebar

Alternatively, you can use the 'Documents' button on the sidebar to launch a generalised version of the documents window. Using this window, it is possible to view the documentation across any number of entities.

PlainSail 📐



Note that the menu choices at the top of the screen are somewhat different than when accessing via an entity, although the Library option will display the same screen once you have chosen the entities to include.

Any document type can be stored in PlainSail and most of the common types of documents are supported by PlainSail's previewer. You may read documents using the previewer only or you can open the document to view only. See <u>Viewing documents</u>.

However, if you wish to edit the document, the document is 'checked out' of the library and is unavailable for editing by other users until it is 'checked-in' again. For this reason, it is good practice to ensure that documents are checked back in as soon as possible. See the section <u>Quickest way to</u> <u>check in documents</u> for more information on this.

In addition, the 'Dashboard' screen also has a widget to show you documents that you have checked out and any 'Signing' that has been assigned to you.

When a document has been edited and checked back in, it creates a newer version and the older version is visible in the 'View Previous Versions' tab in the multi-purpose details pane. See the section <u>Versions</u> for more information.

Workspaces are an important feature in PlainSail, and they are divided into Client workspaces and (in red) and Internal workspaces (in blue). Client workspaces are the set of documents that form the company (or Trust etc) record whilst Internal workspaces are for documents accumulated by the managing company about the client entity. For example, a CDD document is the record of due diligence performed by the managing company <u>about</u> the client company. This does not actually form part of the company record itself but is information tied to the client entity.

Another Internal workspace is called 'Editable' which is intended for documents in, say, Word format that are being drawn up by the managing entity. When it is circulated, signed and finalised, it can then be converted into a PDF (using **Right-Click -> Convert to PDF**) and stored in the company record; e.g. in the Documentation workspace.

Workspaces may be further refined using 'Labels', which may be tagged to the document to create a subcategory within the Workspace. See <u>Tagging documents with labels</u> for more detail.

Documents can be created from Document Templates which may be designed by you and several standard templates are pre-configured and delivered within PlainSail. In order to create new templates, you will require training to understand PlainSail's macro template language.

Documents that have been created may be circulated for approval prior to finalising them by using **Right-Click -> Circulate**. You will then choose the people who need to approve the document and they are informed that a document is awaiting their approval. When they approve (or reject) it, a permanent note is made against the document recording this decision. You can track the progress of this document and will be notified if any user rejects it.

Every user has an individual Filing-tray, and this provides an area for you to temporarily scan and store documents prior to enrolling them to PlainSail. However, there are several other ways for you to bring documents into PlainSail. See <u>Saving new documents into PlainSail</u>.

Key things to remember

- When you store a document in PlainSail, that becomes the definitive version of the document. If the document originally existed in a Windows folder, the Windows folder version is no longer relevant or used and it will never be updated again when you edit the PlainSail version. For this reason, you may want to archive or delete the original version from Windows.
- PlainSail uses version control for all files and works on a Checkout/ Check-in basis for file edits. It is important that you remember to check back in a document when you have finished editing it. You always need to save the document in the program you are editing e.g. Excel, Word etc and close it before checking it back into PlainSail.
- Your document changes will not be visible to other users until you have checked the document back in.
- Ensure that each document added is given a meaningful and comprehensive name.
- If you want to share a document with several entities, do not copy it several times and save it under each entity. You only need one copy which you can link to several entities in the multi-purpose details pane under the View Related Entities tab.
- If you want a document in more than one Workspace, use the View Workspaces tab in the multi-purpose details pane to enrol it in other workspaces. Do not make another copy of it.
- Keep all developing 'Word' (or other editor) versions of documents in the Editable workspace. When you have finished use 'Convert to PDF' and save the fully finalised version in the relevant Client workspace.
- Use Labels to tag documents to further group them within workspaces.
- Documents may be circulated for approval prior to finalising.
- Remember to check the 'Folder' tab on the bottom left of the PlainSail screens which can be clicked at any time to reveal your checked-out documents.
- Also keep an eye on your Dashboard and ensure it is configured with the Documents widget.

Viewing documents

To view the documents for a single client, navigate to **Entities -> Documents**. Select a client and the following screen will be displayed:



The screen comprises of the above four panels and ribbon actions each of which will be explained below.

Workspace panel

Each entity within PlainSail has the same workspaces available. These have been defined by your organisation and can be modified by an IT administrator. All documents must be saved in at least one Workspace.



$\mathsf{PLAINSAIL}\,\mathbf{\overline{k}}$

Documents panel

| *≡ Show not in use | ₽ Search | |
|---|---|--|
| Search | New Microsoft PowerPoint Presentation 10/01/2020 09:08:11 | > |
| orrespondence <i>No label</i> | New Microsoft PowerPoint Presentation - Copy 10/01/2020 09:05:57 | > |
| Breakdowns Emails | Sam Test 10/01/2020 09:01:12 | > |
| Installers | (b) real copy 09/01/2020 17:58:28 | > |
| View Edit | icrosoft Word Document 2020 14:43:04 | > |
| Circulate Copy to filing tray Copy file Paste file | ate of Incumbency - Jersey Company 2920 15:06:10 | > |
| Remove from selected w | vorkspace 2019 15:17:58 | > |
| Rename | ext Document 2019 15:11:49 | > |
| Label as Delete | 3 2019 14:51:45 | > |
| Properties | 12/12/2010 17/14/20 | $\mathbf{\mathbf{\mathbf{\mathbf{\mathbf{\mathbf{\mathbf{\mathbf{\mathbf{\mathbf{\mathbf{\mathbf{\mathbf{\mathbf{\mathbf{\mathbf{\mathbf{\mathbf{$ |
| | qwerty 13/12/2019 17:14:30 | > 、 |
| /orkspaces 🧔 Labels | | 1/44 |

Double click – double click on any document to display associated options (see <u>Checking out a</u> <u>document</u>).

Alt + Double click – to open a document as readonly (you do not wish to make any changes) hold down alt and double click. **Search** – entering a search will filter the documents listed within the selected Workspace. If you need to do a global search see <u>How to</u> <u>search for a document across all clients</u>

Right Click – you can right click on a document or selection of documents which will display the following options:

View: view a read-only copy of the document.

Edit: check the document out if you wish to make changes to it.

Copy file: use this option if you wish to copy the file. You can then paste it into Windows Explorer or an email.

Convert to PDF: if you have a Word document selected, you can use this to convert it to a PDF (the original Word version will be retained).

Rename: change the name of a file or multiple files.

Move to: move a document/(s) within PlainSail to a different client or Workspace.

Label as: see section <u>Tagging documents with</u> <u>labels</u>.

Delete: delete the selected documents.

Properties: display all properties e.g. who created the document

Details panel

Once you have selected a document the middle panel will become visible and will display the following icons. Click these to view different information associated with the selected document. These are explained below.



Notes



The notes menu displays any notes associated with the document. To enter a new note simply type and click the save icon. These notes are only visible to people within your organisation and will not be displayed if you send the file externally.

$\mathsf{PLAINSAIL}\,\mathbf{\overline{k}}$

Entities



The entities menu displays all entities that are connected to this document. Click the **Edit** icon if you wish to change this. If a document relates to more than one entity both should be selected, e.g. an agreement between two parties that are both setup as entities on PlainSail.

Versions



Versions display all versions of the document available within PlainSail (each time a user checks out and checks in a document a new version is created). You can click on a historic version to preview it or rollback to it.

Keep last two versions only – if a document is edited frequently this option can be selected to save space. You will also be prompted to set this when you check in a document that has more than 2 versions.



Workspaces

| Workspaces | |
|----------------|-----------------------------|
| Correspondence | Worksp connec you wis |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| □ x 0 □ 0 < | |

Workspaces – this will list all Workspaces connected to the document. Click the edit icon if you wish to change the workspaces.

Labels

This section is described in section <u>Tagging documents with labels</u>.

Preview panel

The preview panel displays a preview of the selected documents. If the document's format is not supported by the PlainSail previewer, please contact us and we will see if there is another previewer available. To view an unsupported document, right click on the document and click View, which will try and open it using the default program on your computer.

Ribbon actions

Key ribbon actions are described below.



PLAINSAIL 📐

Editing documents already saved in PlainSail

Checking out a document

Double clicking a document will bring up the following options. These are explained below:



Checking in a document

There are two ways to check documents in. You can either click the bottom bar document icon, this is available on any screen within PlainSail. Alternatively, navigate to **Documents -> My Work**, this will list all documents you have currently checked out. You can either click 'Save' on each one and optionally enter a comment of any changes you have made. Or alternatively you can click 'Save all' to check all documents back into PlainSail.

| <u>م</u> | My Work | Libra | ary Approvals | Filing Tray | | | |
|--|---------|-------|--|---|--|---------------------|---|
| ₽ Search | | ← | | | () Options | Refresh Save al | |
| Destrobard Constraints Constr | | > | Check in docur Details: Ref 1 4177 Version 1 2 Entities: Beechwood Limit What changes have | ment - Minutes of Agreen Name I Minutes of Agreemen Checked out I 15/01/2020 ted 2 ve you made? | nent ntdocx Type I Micro Duration I Just now | ssoft Word Document | , |
| Constructions Construction Con | | | | ්) Undo | ₽ Save | | B |
| i O tan oryans | | | | | | , | |

Saving new documents into PlainSail

There are various ways to save a new document into PlainSail, the below sections highlight the common areas.

From Windows Explorer

To save straight from Windows Explorer you can drag and drop files straight into PlainSail. You can either drop the files in the middle pane (if a Workspace is selected) or you can drop them straight into a Workspace. If you drop more than 10 files a confirmation screen will popup that you will need to click **'Save'** on.



Note that when you save a file to PlainSail from Windows, the original Windows file is no longer relevant and there is no link between the PlainSail file and the Windows one. You should archive or delete the original Windows file so that you do not inadvertently edit it again.

From your filing tray

Any documents scanned to your filing tray will appear in **Documents -> Filing Tray**, this screen is designed for bulk uploads into PlainSail. The screen will appear like this:

| þ | | | | | My Wor | k Lit | orary Approv | als Filing T | ray | | |
|----------------------------|-----|------------|---------------------------------|------------------------|------------|----------|-----------------------|---------------|-----|----------------------|--|
| | ୍ତ | <u>ا</u> ا | 2 🖬 | | | | | | | | |
| ooard | You | r filing | ı tray | | | Delete I | ocal file once it has | been uploaded | | Previewer | |
| 2 | | | Name | Туре | Modified | Size | Workspaces | Entities | | | |
| file | | D. | Credit Note CR-00002 - Copy (2) | Adobe Acrobat Document | 6 days ago | 5 KB | [Link] | [Link] | ଡ | | |
| R | | D. | Credit Note CR-00002 - Copy (3) | Adobe Acrobat Document | 6 days ago | 5 KB | [Link] | [Link] | ଡ | | |
| ties | | D. | Credit Note CR-00002 - Copy (4) | Adobe Acrobat Document | 6 days ago | 5 KB | [Link] | [Link] | ୍ଦ | Cro | dit No |
| = | | D. | Credit Note CR-00002 - Copy | Adobe Acrobat Document | 6 days ago | 5 KB | [Link] | [Link] | ୍ଦ | | |
| = tories a) ments | | D | Credit Note CR-00002 | Adobe Acrobat Document | 6 days ago | 5 KB | [Link] | [Link] | Ø | Company: Address: | Beechwood Limiter 666 Esplanade St. Helier JE2 3QA Jersey |
| 1 | | | | | | | | | | Details | |

Filing tray ribbon actions

| þ | | | | |
|--|---|--|--|---|
| 3 ooard | ∞ iii ຯ Your filing | tray | | |
| | | Name | Туре | |
| file | | Credit Note CR-00002 - Copy (2) | Adob | e |
| 2 | - Fa | Condit Ninto CD 00003 Conv 121 | ۸dah | - |
| Lin clic sele to a Wo not | k documents – k this to link the ected documents a Client and orkspace. Please se you can do Itiple documents | Delete documents – click this to delete documents from your filing tray that you have already saved into PlainSail. | Undo links – click this to undo any links you have made to a document. | |
| in c | one go. | | | |

Once you have linked documents to an entity and Workspace you can upload them into PlainSail. Tick the items you wish to upload and then click the below icon.



Within a client from your filing tray



From Microsoft Outlook

Note This function is only available if you have the PlainSail Outlook plugin installed on your computer.

Within Microsoft Outlook you will see the following PlainSail menu on the ribbon:

| Inbox - sam.bryans@plainsail.je - Outlook | . E – □ × | | | | | |
|---|---|--|--|--|--|--|
| Tell me what you want to do | | | | | | |
| Move Tags Groups Search People AV AV Speech Get Send to OneNote Y Filter Email * Find Add-ins OneNote OneNote | Customer Manager | | | | | |
| Search Current Mailbox \mathcal{P} Current Mailbox | Example Email | | | | | |
| Focused Other By Date ∨ ↑ Example Email ∨ Today Sam Bryans Sam Bryans | | | | | | |
| Example Émail 09:03 Kind regards, Sam Bryans Chief Executive Officer PlainSail™ | | | | | | |
| ✓ Tuesday | | | | | | |
| Save – select an email and click 'Save' if you wish to save it to an entity within PlainSail. | Prompt save for sent emails– select this option if you wish for PlainSail to prompt you to save | | | | | |
| | each email you senu. | | | | | |

The following screen will be displayed:

| | Save To Plain | Sail | × | Enter the Client, Workspace and |
|---------------|----------------|---------------------|-------------|---------------------------------|
| nent ete 1 | Client | Beechwood Limited 2 | v ied. I | Name (this will default to the |
| | Workspace | Correspondence | × | subject and click Save |
| Plain | Name | Example Email | Wvin | |
| | Refresh Lookup | <u>8</u> | Cancel Save | |

Tagging documents with labels

All documents must be in at least one Workspace that has been defined by your organisation. You may wish however to sub categorise documents into specific categories for an entity e.g. "London Property Purchase", "2020", "2021" and so on. You can do this using labels and sublabels.

Viewing Labels

To make labels visible click 'Labels' on the Workspace sidebar:



To select a label, click a Workspace and then select the underlying category, documents within this Workspace tagged with this label will then be listed.

Adding labels to documents



The following window will be displayed



Removing Labels from documents

To remove labels from documents, follow the exact same approach as adding a label. Select the documents and click **'Label as'.** This will bring up the same screen, you can then untick any labels you do not wish to be associated with the document.

| ₽ Search | | |
|--------------|---------|-----------------------------|
| Breakdowns | | |
| Credit Notes | | |
| Emails | | |
| Installers | | Selected for some documents |
| Paid | | \checkmark |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | Add lab | pel |
| | 5 | |
| | Undo | odve |

$\mathsf{PLAINSAIL} \blacksquare$

Creating Default Labels For New Entities

Labels belong to specific entities and workspaces but often you want to have a standard set of labels for each new entity or type of entity. You can do this by creating a template entity that is used as the default for all new entities. Here is how you do this:

 If the entity does not already exist, create a new entity of type Group and give it the reserved name *PlainSailTemplateGroup*. Note that the name **must be exactly that** and you should set it to Requires Screening = No and Is Administered = No. PlainSail now ships with that entity as standard but your installation may be older. The current one looks like this:



2. Go to the Documents tab for that entity, click on Labels and add the standard labels that you want for all entities, for example:

| | | Profile | Inform | ation | Manag | ge Inv | ventories | Workf | lows Ta | isks | Relati |
|----------------------------|---|---------|--------------|-------|----------|-----------|------------|---|-------------|--------|--------|
| | = ★ 命 / | ୍ୟ ⊺ | \downarrow | < | > | PlainSai | ilTemplate | Group | × | | |
|) Search | Hide empty workspaces | | File | Гуре | Any file | e types 🧯 | Cre | eator | Any file cr | eators | Ø |
| 📰 Dashboard | 🔶 View emails | | | و م | Search | | | $\leftarrow \!$ | 0-0 of 0 | < | > |
| R Profile | ✓ □ Correspondence Ø Distributions | | | | | | | | | | |
| م ^م Entities | Onboarding Documentation | | | | | | | | | | |
| х́≣ To do | Banking Family | | | | | | | | | | |
| D ocuments | → □ Financials ◇ Minutes | | | | | | | | | | |
| | Investments | | | | | | | | | | |

Whenever you create a new entity, it will be initialised with the same labels and sublabels as the template one.

Using Date Variables in Default Label Names

Often your labels and sublabels will contain the year in their name, for example, 'Annual Minutes 2022, Annual Minutes 2023' and so on. You do not want to have to keep changing these every year so instead you can put date variables in the label names and when the new entity is created the variable will be replaced by the appropriate year. The variables you can use are:

@@CurrentYear @@NextYear @@PreviousYear @@LastYear

For example:



When you create a new entity (in 2023), that will be converted to:



Varying Your Default Labels By Entity Type

If you want a different set of labels and sublabels dependent on the type of entity, for example trusts, companies and people, all you need to do is add one of each type to the PlainSailTemplateGroup entity as a member of the group. You can either use existing entities as your model or you can create special ones just for that purpose. It is less messy and more obvious to use entities created specifically for that purpose with indicative names, although their actual names are irrelevant as only their types matter.



,

For example here we have created a Person, a Trust, and a Company and added them to the PlainSailTemplateGroup:

| 1 | | | | | | | | | | _ | U | ^ |
|--|-----------------------|-------|---------------|-----------|-------------|----------|---------|-----------|----------|----------|--------|------------|
| Profile Information Manage | Inventories Workflows | Tasks | Relationships | Documents | Contact | Billir | ng | Account | ting | Timelii | ne | |
| \star \textcircled{a} \diamondsuit \diamondsuit Plai | nSailTemplateGroup | × | | | | ∑≡ | Ŵ | <u>نې</u> | \wedge | K, | Ø | \bigcirc |
| nks | | | | | Tasks | | | | | | + | ^ |
| arch PlainSail site | | | | | Upcomi | ng | Con | npleted | | Overdu | e | |
| sponsible parties | | | | | 0 | | | 0 | | 0 | | |
| esponsible parties | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | Groups | | | | | <u> </u> | Ø | |
| ontact | | | | + | Members of | this gro | oup: | | | | | |
| | No contact details | | | | PlainSailTe | mplate | Person | | | | | |
| | | | | | PlainSailTe | mplate | Compa | ny Pl | ainSail | Template | eTrust | |
| elationships | | | | + \ | | 🗋 Vie | ew docu | uments fo | or grou | p | | |

You can vary the label structure for each of those entities and when a new entity with the same type is created, it will be initialised with the specific labels for that type. To go back to the defaults for the Group just remove the specific entity from group membership.

Recovering deleted items

Documents deleted within PlainSail are retained for a period defined by your organisation. To recover a deleted document, navigate to **Admin -> Documents -> Recycle Bin:**

| < | 5, | Documents | Recycle Bin | | | | |
|---|------------|-----------------|---------------------|----------------|------------|---------|---|
| | | | | | | | 2 |
| Recycle bin | | Deleted After 1 | 6/01/2020 15 | Deleted before | 16/01/2020 | 15 | Q |
| Document Ex | kt Dele | ted | Created | Deleted by | Size | | |
| New Microsoft PowerPoint Presentation .p | optx 16/01 | 1/2020 09:32:10 | 10/01/2020 09:00:43 | 3 Sam Bryans | 685 KB | Recover | |
| Sam Test .p | optx 16/01 | 1/2020 09:32:10 | 10/01/2020 09:01:12 | 2 Sam Bryans | 31 KB | Recover | |
| New Microsoft PowerPoint Presentation - Copy | optx 16/01 | 1/2020 09:32:10 | 10/01/2020 09:05:44 | 4 Sam Bryans | 31 KB | Recover | |
| New Microsoft PowerPoint Presentation - Copy .p | optx 16/0 | 1/2020 09:32:10 | 10/01/2020 09:05:57 | 7 Sam Bryans | 31 KB | Recover | |

The recycle bin will list all documents you have deleted. If you wish to recover a document that another user has deleted you must ask your IT Administrator to do so, their Recycle Bin will list all other users deleted documents. You can use date filters and press Ctrl+F to search for the name of the document. Press **'Recover'** to restore a document.

$\mathsf{PLAINSAIL}\,\mathbf{\overline{k}}$

Q&A

How do I set default labels for new entities

Create a special entity of type Group and give it the name *PlainSailTemplateGroup* then create the labels and sublabels you need in that entity. That will become a template for all new entities. See the section 'Creating Default Labels For New Entities'.

How to attach a document to an email

The quickest way to attach a document from PlainSail into an email is to right click the documents and press **'Copy File'** you can then paste these into your email.

How to copy a document

If you need to copy a document as the basis of a new document (e.g. to use similar minutes as the basis of a completely new minute), double click the document and press 'Edit a copy of this document'

Quickest way to check in documents

The quickest way to check documents back into PlainSail is to either use the **'Save all'** button in **'Documents -> My Work'** or to use the bottom bar shortcut which is available on every screen:



Save – click save to check the document back in to PlainSail.

How to search for a document across all clients

If you are not sure which client a document was saved to, navigate to **'Documents -> Library'** and press the search icon, this will do a global search:



| My Wor | k Library | Approvals | Templates | Filing Tray | | |
|--------|--|---------------|---------------------|-----------------------|----|----|
| | | | | | RR | P, |
| | Reference Name contains Extension Created before Created After | Select a date | e e ancel Sea | X 15 15 arch | | - |

Enter your search criteria and press **'Search'** to list all results. This will display all documents you have permission to see which match the criteria.

Document Templates

Overview

PlainSail can create Microsoft Word document templates that can be used to generate documents such as minutes, agreements, letters etc. Documents can contain markers which can populate documents with client specific information stored within PlainSail.

Managing document templates

To manage document templates within PlainSail you must have the correct permissions, if you do not have these permissions, please contact your system administrator. To create a new document template, navigate to **Documents -> Templates -> Click 'Entity':**



PLAINSAIL 📐

Creating a new template

Click **Create template**, the following screen will be displayed:

Create a template in the context of: Entity

Select the type of template, enter a name, tick the markers you want, then click Start

| OfficeDocument × | ne of the template | Start | Include help text? | | |
|------------------|--------------------|-------|--------------------|------------------------------------|---|
| | Name | Туре | Source | Description | |
| | CompanyName | | Common | Your company name. | ^ |
| | CurrentDate | | Common | The date the document is produced. | |
| | UserName | | Common | Current user name. | |
| | AgDesc | | BusinessEntity | Agreement Description | |
| | AgEndDate | | BusinessEntity | Agreement Expiry Date | |
| | AgOther | | BusinessEntity | Agreement Counterparty | |
| | AgStartDate | | BusinessEntity | Agreement Start Date | |
| | AgTerms | | BusinessEntity | Terms of the Agreement | |
| | AgType | | BusinessEntity | Agreement Type | |
| | | | | | |

Enter a name for the new document template. You can also tick to include help text into the word document which provides a summary of ways to format markers. The bottom pane of the screen lists available document markers which you can tick to have automatically inserted into your new template. Click **Start** to create the new template. A new Microsoft Word template will be created and appear in your list of template, click the **Edit** icon to open it.

Markers

Markers may be placed in a document template to substitute for information contained in PlainSail and when generated will be replaced by the relevant data.

A marker may be placed anywhere in the document and, if placed inside a table will attempt to fill the table with the required data.

Markers must be predefined before usage and this may only be done by specialised personnel but, once defined, may be used by all users.

When you place a marker in a template, you can modify the results by specifying the format you want the data in and may also filter the data by stating which fields of information you require and by putting conditions on the data. For example, you may wish to list bank accounts for an entity but want only to include the Account Number, Name and Balance for Sterling accounts only.

The marker names are predefined and you can simply put that marker name into the document and when launched the appropriate data will be displayed in the document.

Х

Using markers within a document

Within your Microsoft Word document you can insert markers at any point within the document, Markers will retain formatting that you give them and can be included within headers, paragraphs, footers and tables:

| AutoSa | ave 💽 Of | り回り | ~ D & | | | х | YZ.docx 👻 | | Q | Sam Bryans | | E — |
|----------------|--|--|------------------------|--------|-------------|--------|-----------------------|---------------------------------|---------------------|---|------------------|----------------------------|
| File | Home | Insert | Draw | Design | Layout Refe | rences | Mailings | Review | View Hel | p | ß | Share 🖓 |
| vaste vaste | Cali B S L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L | bri (Body) <i>I</i> <u>U</u> ~ ∉ ~ <u>ℓ</u> ~ <u>A</u> Fo 1 · ı · ∑· | b x₂ x² ∼ Aa∼ nt | A^ A' | | | AaBbCcDc 11 Normal | AaBbCcDc T No Spac Styles | AaBbC(Heading 1 | ▲ ✓ ✓ Editing ✓ ✓ | Dictate Voice | Sensitivity Sensitivity |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | {• | (Com | pany | Name}} | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | {{ | CurrentD | ate}} | | | | | | | | |
| | | I | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | I | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | |

Using markers in a list or within a table

Markers that provide a list of data can be inserted in a table and should follow the below format, in this example a list of the entity's directors with their dates of births will be inserted.

4. The Directors of the Company as at the date hereof are:-

| Name | Date of Birth |
|----------------------|---------------|
| {{Directors:inline}} | |

When you have finished editing your template press **Save** in Microsoft Word and close the document. You must then check the document back into PlainSail in the same way you do for standard documents.

Launching a new document template

Navigate to **Entities -> Documents,** click the launch template icon and pick the template you would like to use. You must then choose a Workspace and enter the name of the document, click **Start.**

| Profile Information | Manage Inventories | Tasks Relationships | Documents | Contact | Billing Ac | counting Timeli | ne |
|------------------------|---|----------------------------|--------------------|--------------------|--------------------|----------------------|------|
| ≡ ★ ଈ ९, ⊼ | Control Con | st 📀 🔿 | | | • + | | 0 🖻 |
| *≡ Show not in use | ₽ Search | | | | | Previewer | |
| ₽ Search | A I Financial Statement 28/09/2020 14:38:52 | - The Beechwood Trust | > | | | | |
| 🖳 View em | | | | | | | |
| Launch 'XYZ' ter | nplate for 'The Beechwood | Trust' and store in w | orkspace 'Edita | able'. | | | |
| Select the workspace a | and template and change the name if | you want to. If you do not | want the new docum | ent to be saved ir | n PlainSail, clear | the Workspace name. | |
| Workspace: | e | × Name: XYZ | | | | | |
| Certificate of Inci | umbency - Jersey Company | | | | | | |
| Minutes of Agree | ement | | | | | | |
| Share Certificate | No Par Value shares | | | | | | |
| Share Certificate | Par Value shares | | | | | | |
| 🛃 XYZ | | | | | | | |
| | | × | ⊳ | | | | |
| | | Cancel | Start | | | | |
| | A 🗊 Financial Statement | - The Beechwood Trust | > | | | | - |
| | | | | | | | |
| Choose a workspa | ce – choose | | | | | باعلم مانوار | hana |
| the workspace you | would like to | | | Laur | ich tem | piate – click | nere |
| save the new docu | ment to. | | | sele | cted clie | nplate for tr nt. | ie |

Once a template has been launched it will automatically open in Microsoft Word and be checked out of PlainSail for you to edit. When you finished editing the document you must save it in Microsoft Word and then check it back into PlainSail.

Converting a Word Document to PDF

When you have finished editing your new document, you may wish to convert this to a PDF for electronic signature. To do this, right click the newly created word document and click '**Convert to PDF'**:



0 X